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Notes for Members - Declarations of Interest:

If a Member is aware they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business, they
must declare its existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent and
must leave the room without participating in discussion of the item.

If a Member is aware they have a Personal Interest** in an item of business, they must declare its
existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent.

If the Personal Interest is also significant enough to affect your judgement of a public interest and
either it affects a financial position or relates to a regulatory matter then after disclosing the
interest to the meeting the Member must leave the room without participating in discussion of the
item, except that they may first make representations, answer questions or give evidence relating
to the matter, provided that the public are allowed to attend the meeting for those purposes.

*Disclosable Pecuniary Interests:

(a) Employment, etc. - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit gain.

(b)  Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of expenses in carrying
out duties as a member, or of election; including from a trade union.

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between the Councillors or
their partner (or a body in which one has a beneficial interest) and the council.

(d) Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.

(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or longer.

() Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in which the
Councillor or their partner have a beneficial interest.

(g)  Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place of business or
land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or of any one class of its issued
share capital.

**Personal Interests:
The business relates to or affects:

(a) Anybody of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management, and:
e To which you are appointed by the council;
e Which exercises functions of a public nature;
e Which is directed is to charitable purposes; and
e Whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or policy (including a
political party of trade union).

(b) The interests of a person from whom you have received gifts or hospitality of at least £50 as a
member in the municipal year;
Or

A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or
financial position of:

e You yourself;
e a member of your family or your friend or any person with whom you have a close
association or any person or body who is the subject of a registrable personal interest.



Agenda

Introductions, if appropriate.

Item Page

5 Statement of Accounts 2018/19 & External Auditor's Reports 1-64

The Committee is asked to review the report to those charged with
Governance from the External Auditor and:

consider the key issues and recommendations;

consider the corrected audit differences;

approve the statement of accounts; and

approve the letter of representation to the External Auditor.

(an updated statement of account would be released before the meeting).
Ward Affected: All Wards

Contact Officers: Minesh Patel, Director of Finance
020 8937 4043, Minesh.Patel@brent.gov.uk

Ben Ainsworth, Head of Finance
020 8937 1731, Benjamin.Ainsworth@brent.gov.uk

Sophia Brown and Paul Dossett, Grant Thornton.
020 7728 3180 /0207728 3179
Sophia.Y.Brown@uk.gt.com
Paul.Dossett@uk.gt.com

Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting.
The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for
members of the public.
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Brent

Audit and Standards Advisory
Committee
10 July 2019

Report from the Director of Finance

Statement of Accounts 2018/19 and External Auditor’s

Report
Wards Affected: ALL
Key or Non-Key Decision: KEY
Open or Part/Fully Exempt:
(If exempt, please highlight relevant paragraph OPEN
of Part 1, Schedule 12A of 1972 Local
Government Act)
1. ISA 260

No. of Appendices:

2. Letter of Representation

Background Papers:

Contact Officer(s):
(Name, Title, Contact Details)

Minesh Patel, Director of Finance
020 8937 4043, Minesh.Patel@brent.gov.uk

Ben Ainsworth, Head of Finance
020 8937 1731, Benjamin.Ainsworth@brent.gov.uk

Summary

1.1 The Audit Committee has responsibility for considering issues raised by the
external auditors as part of the process of approving the annual statement of
accounts. The basis for this consideration is the “report to those charged with
governance” also referred to as the ISA260 report. The Council’s external
auditors, Grant Thornton, produce the report following completion of the audit
of accounts. The report is intended to identify any changes to the accounts,
unadjusted mis-statements or material weaknesses in controls identified during
the audit work. It also provides the findings from the value for money conclusion

for the year.

1.2  Atthe time of writing this report Grant Thornton are in the process of completing
the audit of the 2018/19 accounts and their ISA260 report, reflecting the current
position, will follow and become Appendix 1 to this report. Based on the current

Page 1



mailto:Minesh.Patel@brent.gov.uk
mailto:Benjamin.Ainsworth@brent.gov.uk

1.3

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

position Grant Thornton intends to give unqualified opinions on the Council and
Pension Fund accounts and a clear value for money conclusion.

Representatives from Grant Thornton will attend the meeting to provide an
update on the audit and respond to any matters raised by the Committee.

Recommendations
The Committee is asked to:
Review the report to those charged with Governance from Grant Thornton

and:
consider the key issues and recommendations;

e consider the corrected audit differences;

e approve the statement of accounts; and

e approve the letter of representation to Grant Thornton
Detail

Statement of Accounts

The draft statement of accounts for 2018/19 was published on the council’s
website on the 24 May, a week before the deadline required by statutory
regulation. This timescale is a week earlier than last year and has required the
council to both shorten its processes and make more use of estimation to
produce the accounts on time.

The audit of the accounts commenced in June, and needs to be completed by
the 31st July. At the time of writing, the plan is that the audit fieldwork will be
substantially complete on onsite on 5 July. The auditors will then complete
closing procedures and final reviews with a view to sign off the audit soon after
Audit Advisory Committee meeting on 10 July.

The attached ISA260 report sets out the anticipated results of the audit with

the following key points being:

e Unqualified audit opinion;

e the Authority has made proper arrangements to secure economy; and
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

As a result of the audit a number of adjustments to the accounts have been
agreed by council officers and Grant Thornton. These are shown in section X
of the auditor’s report.

As might be expected in the first year of an accelerated timetable to close the
accounts, there are a number of recommendations from Grant Thornton for how
the process can be improved in future years. Officers will be putting these
recommendations into effect with a revised plan for closing the 2018/19
accounts.
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3.6

3.7

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Publication of Statement of Accounts

The Council is required to publish the 2018/19 accounts by 31 July 2018. Once
approved, the statement of accounts will be published on the Council’'s website.

Once the audit has been completed a Letter of Representation needs to be
signed prior to Grant Thornton issuing an audit opinion. A draft letter, setting
out confirmation from the Council regarding the financial statements and
information provided as part of the audit process, is attached as Appendix 2.
Financial Implications

There have been some adjustments to the Statement of Accounts during the
course of the audit. None of these have impacted on the medium term financial
position of the Council.

Legal Implications

No specific implications.

Equality Implications

No specific implications.

Consultation with Ward Members and Stakeholders

Not applicable.

Human Resources

Not applicable

Report sign off:

Minesh Patel
Director of Finance
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’ Brent Civic Centre
Q Engineers Way
 Brent
HA9 OFJ
020 8937 6528

Minesh.patel@brent.gov.uk
www.brent.gov.uk

Grant Thornton UK LLP
110 Bishopsgate
London

EC2N 4AY

5 July 2019

Dear Sirs

Brent Pension Fund
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of the Brent Pension Fund (‘the
Fund) for the year ended 31 March 2019 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the Fund financial statements
are presented fairly, in all material respects in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 and applicable law.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose
of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

i We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Fund’s financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2018/19 ("the Code"); in particular the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance
therewith.

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Fund and these matters have been
appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements.

iii. The Fund has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial
statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of any regulatory
authorities that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and
detect fraud.

V. We acknowledge our responsibilities for making the accounting estimates included in the financial statements.
Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are
reasonable. Where it was necessary to choose between estimation techniques that comply with the Code, we selected
the estimation technique considered to be the most appropriate to the Fund's particular circumstances for the purpose
of giving a true and fair view. Those estimates reflect our judgement based on our knowledge and experience about
past and current events and are also based on our assumptions about conditions we expect to exist and courses of
action we expect to take.

Vi. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are soundly based,
in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. There are no other material
judgements that need to be disclosed.

Vii. Except as disclosed in the financial statements:

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent
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b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring items requiring separate
disclosure.

Viii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with
the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code.

iX. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International Financial Reporting Standards
and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

X. We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures changes schedules included
in your Audit Findings Report. The financial statements have been amended for these misstatements,
misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

Xi. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements
of International Financial Reporting Standards.

Xii. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of assets and liabilities
reflected in the financial statements.

Xiii. We believe that the Fund’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis on the grounds that
current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the Fund’s needs. We believe that no
further disclosures relating to the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial
statements.

Information Provided

Xiv. We have provided you with:

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the Fund financial
statements such as records, documentation and other matters;

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and

c. unrestricted access to persons within the Fund from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit

evidence.
XV. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is aware.
XVi. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements.
XVii. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially

misstated as a result of fraud.

Xviii. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects
the Fund and involves:

a. management;
b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

XiX. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

XX. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and
regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements.

XXi. There have been no communications with The Pensions Regulator or other regulatory bodies during the year or

subsequently concerning matters of non-compliance with any legal duty.
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XXii. We are not aware of any reports having been made to The Pensions Regulator by any of our advisors.

Xxiii. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Fund's related parties and all the related party relationships and
transactions of which we are aware.

XXiV. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when
preparing the financial statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council's Audit and Standards Committee at its meeting on
10t July 2019.

Yours faithfully

Signed on behalf of London Borough of Brent as administering body of the Brent Pension Fund

Page 2
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, Brent Civic Centre
Q Engineers Way

\ B re n t Wembley, Middlesex
HA9 OFJ
020 8937 6528

Minesh.patel@brent.gov.uk
www.brent.gov.uk

Grant Thornton UK LLP
110 Bishopsgate
London

EC2N 4AY

Dear Sirs

London Borough of Brent Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of the London
Borough of Brent and its subsidiary undertakings, First Wave Housing Ltd, Barham Park Trust, 14B Ltd
and LGA Digital Services for the year ended 31 March 2019 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as
to whether the group and parent Council financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 and applicable law.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Group Financial Statements

We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 ("the Code"); in particular the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance therewith.

i We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the group and parent Council’s
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/19
("the Code"); in particular the group and parent Council financial statements are fairly presented
in accordance therewith.

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the group and parent
Council and these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the group and
parent Council financial statements.

iii. The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material
effect on the group and parent Council financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There
has been no non-compliance with requirements of any regulatory authorities that could have a
material effect on the group and parent Council financial statements in the event of non-
compliance.

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

V. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured
at fair value, are reasonable.

Vi. Except as disclosed in the financial statements:
a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent
b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring
items requiring separate disclosure.

Vii. We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of
pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits disclosures are consistent
with our knowledge. We confirm that all settlements and curtailments have been identified and
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Brent Civic Centre

Q Engineers Way
’ B re n t Wembley, Middlesex

HA9 OFJ

020 8937 6528
Minesh.patel@brent.gov.uk
www.brent.gov.uk

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

properly accounted for. We also confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have been
identified and properly accounted for.

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards
and the Code.

All events subsequent to the date of the group and parent Council financial statements and for
which International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure
have been adjusted or disclosed.

We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures changes
schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The group and parent Council financial
statements have been amended for these misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure
changes and are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance
with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of
assets and liabilities reflected in the group and parent Council financial statements.

We believe that the group and parent Council’s financial statements should be prepared on a
going concern basis on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be
more than adequate for the group and parent Council’s needs. We believe that no further
disclosures relating to the group and parent Council's ability to continue as a going concern need
to be made in the financial statements.

Information Provided

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

XViii.

We have provided you with:

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
group and parent Council financial statements such as records, documentation and
other matters;

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit;
and

c. unrestricted access to persons within the Council from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is aware.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the group and
parent Council financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the group and parent
Council financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware
of and that affects the group and parent Council and involves:

a. management;
b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the group and parent Council
financial statements.
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XiX. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud,
affecting the group and parent Council's financial statements communicated by employees,
former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

XX. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial
statements.

XXi. We have disclosed to you the identity of the group and parent Council's related parties and all

the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

XXii. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should
be considered when preparing the group and parent Council financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

xxiii. We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's risk
assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any significant
risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.

Narrative Report

XXiV. The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the group and
parent Council's financial and operating performance over the period covered by the group and
parent Council financial statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit and Standards Committee
at its meeting on 10 July 2019.

Yours faithfully

Signed on behalf of the Governing Body
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Contents

Section Page
1. Headlines 3
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w 3. Internal control 18
4. Value for money 20
5. Independence and ethics 26
Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:
T Appendices
8 Paul Dossett A. Action plan
® P
artner . .
= B. Audit adjustments
N 0207728 3180
C. Fees
D. Audit Opinion
Sophia Brown
Senior Audit Manager
020 7728 3179
Phoebe Yeung The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing
i our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify
Audit In-charge control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements
020 7728 3392 in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our

prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report
was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.
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Headlines

This table summarises the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audit of the London Borough of Brent (‘the Council’) and the preparation of the group and Council's
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 for those charged with governance.

Financial Statements Under International Standards of Audit (UK)  Our audit work was completed on site during June and July. Our findings are summarised on pages 5-

(ISAs) and the National Audit Office (NAO) 17. We have identified four adjustments to the financial statements that have resulted in a £96.4m

Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code'), we are adjustment to the Council’'s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement which does not

required to report whether, in our opinion, the impact on the General Fund position. Audit adjustments are detailed in Appendix B. We have also

group and Council's financial statements: raised recommendations for management as a result of our audit work in Appendix A.

» give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the group and Council and the
group and Council’'s income and
expenditure for the year; and

Our work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are aware that would require
modification of our audit opinion, Appendix D, or material changes to the financial statements, subject
to the following outstanding matters:

«  have been properly prepared in - PPE revaluation and reclassifications — our work is in progress and we await management
accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC responses to queries raised;
code of practice on local authority - Welfare expenditure — we await evidence to support the Northgate system software updates have
o accounting and prepared in accordance been correctly applied;
) with the Local Audit and Accountability . . it evid o f | . ¢
2 Act 2014. Operlgtlnbg el>(<pend|ture — we await evidence to support one sample for controls testing of new
@D We are also required to report whether other supplier bank set up;
[HEN information published together with the - Creditors — we have extended our unrecorded liabilities testing by one month to cover May 2019 —
ol audited financial statements (including the we await one sample for bank payments;
Annual Governance Statement (AGS), . QOperating revenue — in our revenue cut off sample for May 2019 we identified one potential error
Narrative Report and Pension Fund Financial ~ and are working with management to assess the impact;

Statements), is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appearsto - PFIl—our work is in progress;

be materially misstated. - Our work is in progress in relation to specified procedures for Whole of Government Accounts;

Cash — we are awaiting two school bank account confirmations;

- Receipt of management representation letter; and
- Review of the final set of financial statements.

We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial statements is
consistent with our knowledge of your organisation and the financial statements we have audited.

Our anticipated audit report opinion will be unmodified.
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Headlines — continued

Value for Money Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit

arrangements Practice ('the Code'), we are required to report if, in our
opinion, the Council has made proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources ('the value for money (VFM) conclusion’).

We have completed our risk based review of the Council’s value for money
arrangements. We have concluded that the Council has proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We therefore anticipate issuing an unqualified value for money conclusion, as
detailed in Appendix D. Our findings are summarised on pages 22-25.

Statutory duties The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) also
requires us to:
» report to you if we have applied any of the additional powers
and duties ascribed to us under the Act; and
» To certify the closure of the audit.

We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties.

We have completed the majority of work under the Code. We await certification of
the prior year accounts for 2017/18, 2017/16 and 2015/16 by your predecessor
auditor. KPMG issued their final view on 1 July and the objector has a 21-day
appeal period to appeal the decision not to apply for a for a declaration under

U section 28(3) of the Local Authority and Accountability Act 2014. We are unable to
(g issue our completion certificate until this objection is resolved and the three
(9] previous years of account are certified.
=
(o))
Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.
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Financial statements

Summary

Overview of the scope of our audit

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising from the audit that are
significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial
reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and the
Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents have been discussed with management.

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) and the Code, which is directed towards forming and
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by
management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the
financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of
their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

Audit approach

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the group’s business and is

riskigased, and in particular included:

. ‘gn evaluation of the group’s internal controls environment, including its IT systems and

@ontrols;

[
\l

* An evaluation of the components of the group based on a measure of materiality
considering each as a percentage of the group’s gross revenue expenditure to assess
the significance of each component and to determine the planned audit response. From
this evaluation we determined that analytical reviews were required as part of our audit
of the London Borough of Brent for i4B, FWH, Barham Park Trust, and LGA Digital
Services;

» Controls testing of the Council’s accounts payable system; and

+ Substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances, including
the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks.

We have not had to alter or change our audit plan, as communicated to you on 5 February
20109.

Conclusion

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements and subject to
outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion
following the Audit and Standards Committee meeting on 10 July 2019, as detailed in
Appendix D. These outstanding areas are listed on page 3.

Our approach to materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to
disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law.

Amount
Materiality for the financial statements £20m
Performance materiality £15m
Trivial matters £1m
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Financial Statements

Significant findings — audit risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary
o The revenue cycle includes fraudulent Auditor commentary
transactions (rebutted) We rebutted the risk at the planning stage of our audit. No circumstances arose that indicated we would need to

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed
risk that revenue may be misstated due to the o
improper recognition of revenue. Findings

There are no issues to bring to your attention.

reconsider this judgement.

9 Management over-ride of controls Auditor commentary
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable We have:

presumed risk that the risk of management over-ride Evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals;
of controls is present in all entities. The Authority

faces external scrutiny of its spending and this could - Analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals;

=) potentially place management under undue pressure — Tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and
Q in terms of how they report performance. corroboration;
Qe identified management over-ride of controls as a — Gained an understanding of accounting estimates and critical judgements applied made by management and
= risk requiring special audit consideration. considered their reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence; and
o — Evaluated the rationale for any significant changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual
transactions.
Findings

There are no issues to bring to your attention.
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Significant findings — audit risks

o
Q
Q
D

=
O

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Valuation of land and buildings (Rolling
revaluation)

The Authority revalues its land and buildings on a
rolling five-yearly basis with a proportion of the asset
base being revalued each year. The Authority
engages the services of external valuation experts.
This valuation represents a significant estimate by
management in the financial statements due to the
size of the numbers involved (£1,636m) and the
sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key
assumptions. Additionally, management will need to
ensure the carrying value in the Authority’s financial
statements is not materially different from the current
value or the fair value (for surplus assets) at the
financial statements date, where a rolling programme
is used.

We therefore identified valuation of land and
buildings, particularly revaluations and impairments,
as a significant risk, which was one of the most
significant assessed risks of material misstatement,
and a key audit matter.

Auditor commentary

We have:

Evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued
to valuation experts and the scope of their work (refer also to our detailed review of estimation process in key
judgements and estimates section on pages 10-11);

Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert;
Discussed with the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out;

Challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and consistency with our
understanding; and

Tested revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the Authority's asset register;
Sample testing of beacon properties in the HRA; and

Evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and how
management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current value at year end.

Findings

Our work in this area is in progress.

Valuation of the pension fund net liability

The pension fund net liability, as reflected in the
Authority balance sheet as the net defined benefit
liability, represents a significant estimate in the
financial statements. The pension fund net liability is
considered a significant estimate due to the size of
the numbers involved and the sensitivity of the
estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the Authority’s
pension fund net liability as a significant risk, which
was one of the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement, and a key audit matter.

Auditor commentary

We have:

Updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure that the
Authority’s pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and evaluate the design of the associated controls
(refer also to our detailed review of estimation process in key judgements and estimates section on pages 12-13);

Evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an actuary) for this estimate and
the scope of the actuary’s work;

Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Authority’s pension fund
valuation;

Assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Authority to the actuary to estimate
the liability;

Tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the core financial
statements with the actuarial report from the actuary; and
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Financial statements

Significant findings — audit risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary
e Valuation of the pension fund net liability — Undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report
- Continued of the consulting actuary PwC (as auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested within

the report. This has included:
— Review of the scope of the actuary’s work;
— Review of the source data provided to the actuary to confirm its validity and completeness;
— Performed checks on accounting policy disclosures in relation to IAS 19;

— Reviewed the duration of liabilities of the Council to ensure assumptions used are appropriate to the
asset and liability profile of the authority;

— Reviewed if there are any departures from the actuary’s recommended assumptions — none noted; and

— Performed additional tests in relation to accuracy of contribution figures, benefits paid, and investment
returns to gain assurance over roll-forward valuation.

Findings

Our audit work identified that the Council used the provisional figure for its pension fund net liability of £829.3m, issued
by its actuary in January 2019, in compiling the draft statement of accounts (Note 8 Long term liabilities). The actuary’s
final report issued in May 2019 has a revised pension fund net liability of £918.7m. We understand the Council used
provisional figures for the pension fund net liability in drafting its statement of accounts for early closedown. Where the
year end actual figure is materially different to the provisional figure used we ask the Council to revise its position. The
Council will amend this difference in its revised 2018/19 Statement of Accounts, refer to Appendix B for the adjustment.

0z abed

In the ‘Significant findings — other issues’ on page 9 we set out the potential impact of the McCloud judgement on the
pension fund net liability.
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Significant findings - other issues

Issue

Commentary

Auditor view

Potential impact of the McCloud
judgement

The Court of Appeal has ruled that there was
age discrimination in the judges and
firefighters pension schemes where
transitional protections were given to scheme
members.

The Government applied to the Supreme
Court for permission to appeal this ruling, but
this permission to appeal was unsuccessful.
The case will now be remitted back to
employment tribunal for remedy.

The@gal ruling around age discrimination
(Me€Qloud - Court of Appeal) has implications
not fBst for pension funds but also for other
pendidn schemes where they have
imp'?mented transitional arrangements on
changing benefits.

Discussion is ongoing in the sector regarding the potential
impact of the ruling on the financial statements of Local
Government bodies.

The Council has requested an estimate from its actuary of
the potential impact of the McCloud ruling. The actuary’s
estimate was of a possible increase in pension liabilities of
£7m, and an increase in service costs for the 2019/20 year
of £6.88m.

Management’s has adjusted the 2018/19 Statement of
Accounts to incorporate this revised actuarial valuation.

We have reviewed the analysis performed by the actuary, and
consider that the approach that has been taken to arrive at this
estimate is reasonable.

Although we are of the view that there is sufficient evidence to indicate
that a liability is probable, we have satisfied ourselves that there is not a
risk of material error as a result of this issue. We also acknowledge the
significant uncertainties relating to the estimation of the impact on the
Council’s liability.

We have included this as an adjustment within Appendix B.
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Significant findings — key judgements and estimates

Accounting area

Summary of management’s policy

Audit Comments

Assessment

Provisions for
NNDR appeals -
£8.2m

The Council is responsible for repaying a proportion of
successful rateable value appeals. Management calculates
the level of provision required based upon the latest
information about outstanding rates appeals provided by
the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) and previous success
rates. In 2018/19 the provision is £8.2m, an increase of
£2.4m from the prior year. Part of the reason for this
increase is that in 2017/18 the Council’'s NNDR appeals
provision was centrally pooled with Central Government
and the GLA, and Brent’s share of this was 30% of the
pool. This year the total NNDR appeals provision is £12.8m
and this is split between the Council (64%) and the GLA
(36%).

The draft Statement of Accounts did not include an accounting policy for the

NNDR appeals provision. Management has included an appropriate accounting

policy in the revised Statement of Accounts.

Lan®and
BuiEings —
Coudcil Housing
- £683.2m

N

The Council owns 7,751 dwellings and is required to
revalue these properties in accordance with DCLG’s Stock
Valuation for Resource Accounting guidance. The
guidance requires the use of beacon methodology, in
which a detailed valuation of representative property types
is then applied to similar properties. The Council has
engaged its valuer, Wilks Head & Eve LLP, to complete the
valuation of these properties. The year end valuation of
Council Housing was £602.2m, a net decrease of £35.6m
from 2017/18 (£637.8m). There was also a net reduction of
346 dwellings between 2017/18 to 2018/19 in relation to
Right-to-Buy sales, regeneration programmes and transfer
of dwellings from the HRA to the General Fund to be used
for temporary accommodation.

* The Council’s valuer Wilks Head & Eve LLP last valued the entire housing
stock on 1 April 2016 using the beacon methodology. For 2018/19 the
valuer reviewed market changes from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 to
correctly state the value of the HRA stock held by the Council during the

financial period in current terms. Market reviews have been provided to the

Council each financial year since the last full valuation.

*  We have assessed the Council’s valuer, Wilks Head & Eve LLP, to be
competent, capable and objective.

* We have carried out completeness and accuracy testing of the underlying

information provided to the valuer used to determine the estimate and have

no issues to report.
* The valuation method remains consistent with the prior year.

* We have carried out sample testing of beacon properties and have no
issues to report.

» The estimate is consistent against valuation trends of similar properties
(Gerald Eve report) with house prices for London council dwellings having
growth of -1.9%. We therefore are satisfied that the 2% decrease in the
estimate for 2018/19 is reasonable.

+ We have agreed the HRA valuation report to the Statement of Accounts.

Assessment

® Wedisagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management'’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management'’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious
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Financial statements

Significant findings — key judgements and estimates

Audit Comments

Summary of management’s policy

Assessment

Land and Buildings —
Other - £798.6m

ez abed

Other land and buildings comprises £564.2m of
specialised assets such as schools and libraries,
which are required to be valued at depreciated
replacement cost (DRC) at year end, reflecting
the cost of a modern equivalent asset necessary
to deliver the same service provision. The
remainder of other land and buildings (£233.5m)
are not specialised in nature and are required to
be valued at existing use in value (EUV) at year
end. The Council has engaged Wilks Head &
Eve LLP to complete the valuation of properties
as at 1 April 2018 on a five yearly cyclical basis.
47% of total assets were revalued during
2018/19. The valuation of properties valued by
the valuer has resulted in a net increase of
£96.4m. Management have considered the year
end value of non-valued properties, and the
potential valuation change in the assets revalued
at 1 April 2018, based on the market review
provided by the valuer as at 31 March 2019, to
determine whether there has been a material
change in the total value of these properties.
Management’s assessment of assets not
revalued has identified no material change to the
properties value. The total year end valuation of
other land and buildings was £374.9m, a net
increase of £108.2m from 2017/18 (£266.7m).

We have assessed the Council’s valuer, Wilks Head & Eve LLP, to be
competent, capable and objective.

We have carried out completeness and accuracy testing of the underlying
information provided to the valuer used to determine the estimate and have
no issues to report.

The valuation method remains consistent with the prior year.

We confirm consistency of the estimate against the Gerald Eve report, and
reasonableness of the increase in the estimate.

We have agreed the General Fund valuation report to the Fixed Asset
Register and to the Statement of Accounts.

Assessment
We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management'’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management'’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious
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Significant findings — key judgements and estimates

Summary of management’s policy

Audit Comments

Assessment

Net pension
liability — £918.7m

The Council’s net pension liability at 31
March 2019 is £918.7m (PY £841.8m)
comprising the London Borough of
Brent Local Government Pension
Scheme. The Council uses Hymans
Robertson to provide actuarial
valuations of the Council’s assets and
liabilities derived from this scheme. A
full actuarial valuation is required every
three years. The latest full actuarial
valuation was completed in 2016. A roll
forward approach is used in intervening
periods, which utilises key assumptions
such as life expectancy, discount rates,
salary growth and investment returns.
Given the significant value of the net
pension fund liability, small changes in
assumptions can result in significant
valuation movements. There has been
a £76.9m net actuarial loss during
2018/19.

{7z abed

We have assessed the Council’s actuary, Hymans Robertson, to be competent, capable and

objective.

We have performed additional tests in relation to accuracy of contribution figures, benefits
paid, and investment returns to gain assurance over the 2018/19 roll forward calculation

carried out by the actuary and have no issues to raise.

We have used PwC as our auditor expert to assess the actuary and assumptions made by
the actuary — see table below for our comparison of actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate 2.40%-2.50%

Pension increase rate 2.50%-2.40%

Salary growth 1.00% to 2020

Pensioners: 21.5-22.8
Non-pensioners: 23.7-
24.4

Life expectancy — Males
currently aged 45 / 65

Pensioners: 24.1-25.1
Non-pensioners: 26.2-
26.9

Life expectancy — Females
currently aged 45 / 65

Assumption is reasonable and
towards the more optimistic end
of expected ranges

Assumption sits towards the
middle, slightly towards the
higher, more prudent end of
expected ranges

In line with public sector pay
caps

Assumption is based on the CMI
2013 model and allowance is
towards more prudent end of
expect ranges

Assumption is based on the CMI
2013 model and allowance is
towards more prudent end of
expect ranges

Assessment

® Wedisagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management'’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management'’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious
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Significant findings — key judgements and estimates

Summary of management’s policy Audit Comments Assessment
Net pension * We have confirmed the controls and processes over the completeness and accuracy of the
liability — underlying information used to determine the estimate.
continued * We have confirmed there were no significant chances in 2018/19 to the valuation method.

* We conducted an analytical review to confirm reasonableness of the Council’s share of LPS
pension assets.

+ Reasonableness of increase in estimate — per the comments raised on page 8 in relation of
use of the provisional IAS 19 estimate in preparing the draft Statement of Accounts we
conducted our work on the final estimate issued by the actuary in May 2019. Our work
confirms that the increase in the IAS 19 estimate is reasonable.

« The disclosure of the IAS 19 estimate in the Statement of Accounts will be revised to the final
position issued by the actuary in May 2019.

o
QD
«Q
(9]
N
(6)
Assessment

® Wedisagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management'’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management'’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for the London Borough of Brent | 2018/19

13



Financial statements

Significant findings — matters discussed with management

This section provides commentary on the significant matters we discussed with management during the course of the audit.

Significant matter

Commentary

Significant events or transactions that occurred
during the year — discussions in relation to the
Council’s arrangements for Brexit .

9¢ abed

We held discussions with the CFO around the Council’s
arrangements for Brexit:

In November 2018 Full Council received a report on
the Implications of Brexit, reviewing impact on:
workforce; value of sterling; housing prices; business
rates; construction and regeneration; and funding.
The Council held public meetings in January and
March 2019 for EU nationals about Brexit, for Q&A
session and to share information about the EU settling
scheme.

The Council held a Brexit Support Session in April
2019 for local businesses designed to help them be
more resilient to risks associated with changes to our
relationship with the EU following Brexit.

The Council has a Brexit Risk Assessment which
outlines the key risks for the Council in relation to
Brexit along with mitigating actions identified to
manage and reduce the impact of each risk.

Auditor view

The Council has made good progress with Brexit
preparations. Councillors are very keen to understand the
implications on the Council and the services it provides. The
Brexit Risk Assessment allows the Council to have an
overview of the key risks of Brexit to Brent and the
mitigating actions required to manage and reduce the
impact of each risk. Brent also has actively engaged with
residents and local businesses, providing a forum to share
information and to facilitate Q&A sessions.

Management response
The Council will continue its preparations for Brexit.
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Financial statements

Significant findings — Going concern

Going concern commentary

Management's assessment process

The Council’s accounts have been prepared on the going
concern basis. Public sector bodies are assumed to be
going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a
service in the future is anticipated, as evidenced by
inclusion of financial provision for that service in published
documents.

)2 abed

Auditor commentary

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's
use of the going concern assumption in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude
whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK) 570).

We have subjected the 2019/20 budget and MTFS to 2021/20 to detailed scrutiny, and reviewed the planned savings

proposals for 2019/20 and 2020/21 in our consideration of the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern assumption.

In 2019/20 the Council expects to overspend by £0.2m against the General Fund budget. This overspend relates to
historic care costs within Adult Social Services. A £0.4m overspend is forecast within the HRA relating to delays
implementing the Customer Relationship Management system. Additionally, Children and Young People (Dedicated
School Grant) forecasts to overspend by £2m in relation to an increase in demand with High Needs Education.
However, the Council’s reserves position is strong and financially, it is one of the better placed London boroughs. Refer
to detailed findings on pages 22-25 of this report.

Conclusion

The Council’s reserves position is strong. At 31 March 2019 the Council’s total usable reserves stood at £368.3m —
refer to page 24 of this report for a more in-depth analysis of this balance. Brent is in a much stronger position than
virtually all other London boroughs. The Council is also able to look to PWLB borrowing with a Capital Financing
Requirement of £687.6m and current borrowing levels at £400m this gives additional headroom of £287m for future
borrowing.

We have not identified any material uncertainty about the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Other communication requirements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.

Issue

Commentary

Matters in relation to fraud

We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit and Standards Committee. We have not been made aware of any other
incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.

Matters in relation to related
parties

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

Matters in relation to laws and
regulations

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not
identified any incidences from our audit work.

Written representations

A letter of representation has been requested from the Council which is included in the Committee papers.

e U Confirmation requests from
@ third parties
(¢

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to the Council’s bank. This permission was granted and the
requests were sent. However requests were not received so we have undertaken alternative procedures to verify the Council’s year end
bank balances through agreement via the online banking system.

@g Disclosures

Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements. We identified that the updated Financial Instruments disclosure had
not been applied in the 2018/19 draft Statement of Accounts to be in compliance with the implementation of IFRS 9, please refer to
Appendix B.

e Audit evidence and
explanations/significant
difficulties

All information and explanations requested from management was provided.
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Other responsibilities under the Code

Issue

Commentary

o Other information

We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements (including
the Annual Governance Statement, Narrative Report and Pension Fund Financial Statements), is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

No inconsistencies have been identified. We plan to issue an unmodified opinion in this respect — refer to Appendix D.

9 Matters on which we report by
exception

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a numbers of areas:

e |f the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is
misleading or inconsistent with the other information of which we are aware from our audit; and/or

e If we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties.
We have nothing to report on these matters.

9 Specified procedures for
Whole of Government
Accounts

Bbed

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation
pack under WGA group audit instructions.

As the Council exceeds the specified group reporting threshold we examine and report on the consistency of the WGA consolidation
pack with the Council's audited financial statements. Our work in this area is in progress and will be complete in line with the national
deadline.

6¢ ©

9 Certification of the closure of
the audit

We are unable to certify the closure of the 2018/19 audit of the London Borough of Brent in the audit opinion, as detailed in Appendix D,
until the resolution of an elector objection in relation to the 2015/16 Financial Statements. Following this we require your predecessor
auditor, KPMG, to certify the prior year accounts for 2017/18, 2017/16 and 2015/16. We are unable to issue our completion certificate until
this objection is resolved and the three previous years of account are certified.
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Internal controls

The purpose of an audit is for the auditor to express an opinion on the financial statements. Our audit included consideration of internal controls relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control. The matters we identified during the course of our audit are set out in the table below. These and other recommendations, together with management, are included in the
action plan at Appendix A.

Assessment Issue and risks Recommendations

1 Control account reconciliations Maintain regular control account reconciliations for each

In our testing of the Council’s key financial systems we identified that the Council does K€Y financial system.
not regularly produce control account reconciliations for the following areas:

» Payroll —inclusion of gross to net report reconciliations to the current payroll
reconciliations prepared;

» Fixed asset register;
*  Welfare benefits;

*  HRA;

¢ Council tax; and

* NNDR.

Control accounts should be regularly maintained for key financial systems so that the
Council can prove the accuracy of the general ledger and understand the balances
which make up each key area of the accounts.

o€ abed

2 NNDR creditors Management should release NNDR credits that are not

Our testing of 7 items of NNDR creditors identified that 3 out of 7 creditors were over 10 €XPected to be claimed.
years old.

Assessment
@  Significant deficiency — risk of significant misstatement
Deficiency — risk of inconsequential misstaternent
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Internal controls — continued

Assessment Issue and risks Recommendations

3 IT general controls a)
Our IT auditor conducted a review in April 2019 and identified the following key findings:

a) Testing identified two enabled default accounts within the Oracle E-Business Suite
live environment. It was noted these accounts have default passwords that have
not been changed since installation and have no end date. These accounts present
a security risk as the usernames and passwords are widely available. They present
an easy point of compromise for a malicious user.

b) The Oracle database audit trail is not enabled. We noted that audit logging was not
enabled in the database specifically the following: b)
AUDITTRAIL_ACTIVATE which tracks updates in a table made via a form as
well as the user who was logged in using that form at that time was set to
none. An absence of effective audit logging on the application and database
increases the risk of unauthorised or malicious actions going undetected and
untraceable to the individual who performed such actions.

c) Our segregation of duties review noted 117 users with segregation of duty conflicts.
In particular we noted the below business process conflicts:

TE abed

Financial Statement Closing Process: ©)

» 16 users that have access to perform GL transactions and the ability to
maintain GL periods.

» 75 users with access to journal entry and journal post.

» 15 users that can open and close accounting periods and perform AP
payments

Purchase to Pay:

» 15 users with access to perform payables invoice entry and purchase order
entry.

» 19 users with access to perform payables invoice entry and make changes
to supplier master.

* 9users with access to perform AP payments and bank reconciliations.

Order to Cash
» 8 users have access to perform AR cash receipts and bank reconciliation.

Passwords for default accounts should be changed
immediately. Management should introduce a
procedure for ensuring that these accounts are
reviewed following any upgrades or patches, as
these activities can often reset the default
passwords on these accounts. Default accounts
with default passwords can be identified through
running security reports within the Oracle
Applications Manager.

Management should review and configure audit
logging to ensure that meaningful information can
be obtained from audit logs. A review of key tables
that are audit logged should be undertaken to
ensure that only high-risk areas are subject to audit
logging. Additionally, audit logs for high risk areas
and key database tables should be periodically
reviewed.

Management should review the segregation of duty
conflicts identified to ensure they are comfortable
with the conflicts due to the nature of individuals’
work and the supervision over these activities, or
resolve any conflicts which put the Council at risk.

Assessment
@  Significant deficiency
Deficiency — ris
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Value for Money

Background to our VFM approach
We are required to satisfy ourselves that the Council has made proper arrangements for

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as
the Value for Money (VFM) conclusion.

We are required to carry out sufficient work to satisfy ourselves that proper arrangements
are in place at the Council. In carrying out this work, we are required to follow the NAQO's
Auditor Guidance Note 3 (AGN 03) issued in November 2017. AGN 03 identifies one single
criterion for auditors to evaluate:

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Z2€ abed

Informed

decision
making

Value for
Money
arrangements

criteria

Working Sustainable
with partners resource
& other third deployment

parties
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Risk assessment

We carried out an initial risk assessment in December 2018 and identified one
significant risk in respect of specific areas of proper arrangements using the guidance
contained in AGN03. We communicated these risks to you in our Audit Plan dated
January 2019.

We have continued our review of relevant documents up to the date of giving our
report, and have not identified any further significant risks where we need to perform
further work.

We carried out further work only in respect of the significant risk we identified from our
initial and ongoing risk assessment. Where our consideration of the significant risk
determined that arrangements were not operating effectively, we have used the
examples of proper arrangements from AGN 03 to explain the gaps in proper
arrangements that we have reported in our VFM conclusion.
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Value for Money

Value for Money

Our work

AGN 03 requires us to disclose our views on significant qualitative aspects of the Council's
arrangements for delivering economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

We have focused our work on the significant risks that we identified in the Council's
arrangements. In arriving at our conclusion, our main considerations were:

¢« The Council’s 2018/19 financial outturn;

» The robustness of the Council’s 2019/20 budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy,
including savings and income proposals; and

» The level and stability of the Council’s usable reserves.

We have set out more detail on the risks we identified, the results of the work we
performed, and the conclusions we drew from this work on pages 22-25.

T
O\Lgrall conclusion

D N . g
Ba on the work we performed to address the significant risks, we are satisfied that the
Coungil had proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.

The text of our report, which confirms this can be found at Appendix D.
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Significant difficulties in undertaking our work
We did not identify any significant difficulties in undertaking our work on your
arrangements which we wish to draw to your attention.

Significant matters discussed with management

There were no matters where no other evidence was available or matters of such
significance to our conclusion or that we required written representation from
management or those charged with governance.
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Value for Money

Key findings

We set out below our key findings against the significant risks we identified through our initial risk assessment and further risks identified through our ongoing review of documents.

Significant risk: Financial outturn and sustainability

o The risk as identified in our 2018/19 Audit Plan

The Authority has historically performed well at managing its financial position although reductions in funding and increasing demand for services has made this increasingly
challenging.

The Authority is planning to make £40m savings over the next four years to balance the budget and is currently consulting on savings and income generation proposals to
identify £20m of net expenditure reduction for the next two years.

We will review the Authority’s arrangements for delivering its budget including the arrangements for monitoring and reporting delivery of savings plans for 2018/19.

Findings

T 2018/19 Financial outturn Actual Spend versus Budget Overspend J (Underspend)

Q £m 18/19 Budget  18/19 Actual Variance

«Q

D .
Children & Young Pecple 41.4 43.1 1.7

(ﬁ Community Wellbeing 127.1 127.3 0.2
Performance, Policy & Partnerships 10.2 10.3 0.1
Regeneration & Environment 376 338 (3.8
Resources 387 38.5 (0.2)
Total General Fund 255.0 253.1 (2.0)
DSG funded activity 3.3 33 0.0
HRA funded activity 2.5 2.3 0.7)
Overall pesition 260.8 258.7 (2.2)

The Council had a challenging year but was able to achieve a £2m underspend against the main General Fund revenue budget. This is an improvement on the position
forecasted in previous periods and the position in previous years. The outturn highlights the effective management action taken to address the pressures throughout the year.
The £1.7m overspend in CYP was met by contingency funds within CYP reserves. There was also a small £0.2m overspend within Community Wellbeing in relation to
Housing Partnerships (PFI). Of the £3.8m underspend in Regeneration & Environment, £2.7m is proposed to be set aside for 2019/20 projects.

The use of CYP earmarked reserves illustrates that the Council does have ongoing financial pressures which need to be addressed. However, this needs to be put in the

context of income growth opportunities in relation to an increasing council tax and business rates bases, and the strong position of the Council’s reserves. Brent has over

£368m of usable reserves, of which over £100m of reserves, not related to capital, schools or HRA, can ultimately be deployed to address in-year shortfall. This is a much
stronger position than virtually all other London boroughs. It is also worth noting that the Council is very clear about actively finding solutions in CYP.
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Value for Money

Significant risk: Financial outturn and sustainability - continued

2019/20 Budget and beyond

The Council’'s MTFS assumes a £40m net expenditure reduction over next 4 years to balance the budget. If the £40m reduction is underestimated the Council may have to
resort to 'core services' offer. Savings proposals of £26.2m were identified to be consulted with councilors and local residents, with £20m of savings required to balance
budgets for 2019/20 and 2020/21. The budget for 2019/20 is based on the 2018/19 outturn. All savings have been separately identified and reported to ensure robustness of
the 2019/20 budget. Over the decade to 2019/20 core funding will have fallen by 63% in real terms, LG revenue spending power will have fallen by 23%. At the same time, in
London, population has risen by over 15%, more than double the rate elsewhere in England. Brent has a history of managing its finances well, delivering savings of £164m
since 2010.

Overall the Council expects to overspend against the main 2019/20 General Fund budget by £0.2m. This £0.2m overspend relates to historic care costs within Adult Social
Services. All other General Fund departments are forecasting to spend to budget. A £0.4m overspend is forecast within the HRA relating to delays implementing the
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system. Additionally CYP (DSG) forecasts to overspend by £2m against grant funding due to the increase in demand for High
Needs Education support for the increasing number of children with Education Health and Care Plans (EHCPs), and increasing number of young people with EHCPs staying
in post-16 education. The rate of increase for High Needs exceeds the growth in overall pupil numbers, but High Needs funding has not increased proportionately. In Brent
the number of EHCPs increased by 200 in 2018/19, from 2,000 in 2017/18, a 10% increase despite no real change in total pupil population aged 4-16 years. The average

“Ucost of funding the services required by an EHCP is £20k and can range from £11Kk for support in mainstream schools to £63k in more specialist out of borough settings. The
Council’s High Needs forecast for 2019/20 of £59.3m is indicative, based on a 5% increase in the number of EHCPs. The overspend will be partially offset by a £1m

(D contribution from the Schools Block, agreed during budget setting by the Schools Forum. The remaining forecast overspend will nearly deplete the DSG reserve of £2.5m.

aThe medium-term position for the Council is more uncertain. There is no confirmed Government funding plan in place for 2020/21 and beyond due to the impact of Brexit and
of course now the Conservative Party leadership contest. Local Government funding is due to go undergo a significant shake up due to the impact of the business rate
retention plan and the Fairer Funding Review.

The Brent response will continue to be focused on:

» Increasing council tax base growth and maximising referendum limits;

» Delivering savings and reshaping Children’s services; and

» Increased focus on capital regeneration and associated income growth from business rates, fees and charges etc.
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Significant risk: Financial outturn and sustainability - continued

2019/20 Budget and beyond - continued

Total general fund and earmarked general fund reserves (excluding schools) as at 31 March 2019
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The above graph sets out Brent’s reserves position relative to other London boroughs as at 31 March 2019. The reserves position increased by £3.3m overall, of which
£248.9m are total general fund reserves and earmarked reserves excluding schools’ reserves. This analysis demonstrates that the Council is maintaining levels much above
those of its peers but it is recognised that of the £368.3m total usable reserves and capital receipts reserve, £240m relates to reserves built up and held to help finance the
Council’s £1bn capital expenditure plans, per the 2019/20 budget report. Excluding the capital reserves, HRA and schools reserves leaves general fund reserves of £109m
which is close to the average level of reserves for London boroughs as can be seen in the chart above.
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Significant risk: Financial outturn and sustainability - continued

2019/20 Budget and beyond - continued
Brent Reserves Composition

1

201516 201617 201718 201819

, € abed

mUsable reserves  mUnusable reserves

Overall as the reserves position shows, Brent is has a high level of usable reserves. It is overall one of the better placed London boroughs to survive the financial challenges
over the next few years. Overall, we believe the significant risk of financial outturn and sustainability is mitigated.

Conclusion

Auditor view

The Council’s reserves position is strong. Our financial foresight tool does not give a predicted date for reserve depletion given the positive starting level and the level of
income growth achievable.
Overall, we believe the significant risk of financial outturn and sustainability for the London Borough of Brent is mitigated.

Management response

The Council intends to use over £200m of these reserves to help finance its £1bn capital expenditure programme detailed in the 2019/20 budget report. A key objective of
this capital expenditure is to help address the financial challenges the Council faces.
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Independence and ethics

Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial

statements

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical

requirements for auditors of local public bodies.
Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix C.

Audit and Non-audit services

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following non-audit services were identified.

o Fees £ Threats identified Safeguards
A@it related
qu)ification of Housing £20,000 plus  Self-Interest (because The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee
Beigefits Subsidy return £800 per diem thisis a recurring fee) for this work is £20,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £153,684 and in particular relative to Grant

rate for additional
work if required

Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Teachers’ Pensions return £3,000 Self-Interest (because
this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee
for this work is £3,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £153,684 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Certification of Pooling of £2,000 Self-Interest (because
Housing Capital Receipts this is a recurring fee)
grant

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee
for this work is £2,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £153,684 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.
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Independence and ethics — continued

Fees £ Threats identified Safeguards

Audit related

14B Holdings Ltd audit £27,000 Self-Interest (because The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee
this is a recurring fee) for this work is £27,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £153,684 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

First Wave Housing Ltd £25,000 Self-Interest (because The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee

audit this is a recurring fee) for this work is £25,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £153,684 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Thé&3e services are consistent with the group’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been approved by the Councils S151 Officer. None of the
s%ices provided are subject to contingent fees.
D

W
(o]
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Appendix A

Action plan

We have identified two recommendations for the Council as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our recommendations with management and we

will report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2019/20 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the

course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards.

Assessment  Issue and risk Recommendations
Control account reconciliations Maintain regular control account reconciliations for each key financial system.
Control account reconciliations of key financial
systems to the general I(_adger are not routinely Management response
performed by the Council. o o ] ) -
. The Council will strengthen reconciliations in the areas identified.
Refer to page 18 of this report for further
detail.
NNDR creditors Management should release NNDR credits that are not expected to be claimed.
o Our testing of 7 items of NNDR creditors Management response
jab) |dent|f|elg that 3 out of 7 creditors were over 10 The Council needs to be prudent in its treatment of NNDR credits, so will review these credits, including the
(8 years old. legislation around NNDR credits, to determine how these should be treated and update its policies and
Refer to page 18 of this report for further procedures appropriately to address this issue.
S detail

IT general controls

a) Two enabled default accounts within the
Oracle EBS have default passwords.

b) The Oracle database audit trail is not
enabled. We noted that audit logging was
not enabled in the database.

c) Our segregation of duties review noted
117 users with segregation of duty
conflicts.

Refer to page 19 of this report for further
detail.

a) Passwords for default accounts should be changed immediately. Management should introduce a
procedure for ensuring that these accounts are reviewed following any upgrades or patches, as these
activities can often reset the default passwords on these accounts. Default accounts with default
passwords can be identified through running security reports within the Oracle Applications Manager.

b) Management should review and configure audit logging to ensure that meaningful information can be
obtained from audit logs. A review of key tables that are audit logged should be undertaken to ensure that
only high-risk areas are subject to audit logging. Additionally, audit logs for high risk areas and key
database tables should be periodically reviewed.

c¢) Management should review the segregation of duty conflicts identified to ensure they are comfortable with
the conflicts due to the nature of individuals’ work and the supervision over these activities, or resolve any
conflicts which put the Council at risk.

Management response

The Council undertakes to review the findings of this report, and determine how controls in Oracle can be
strengthened.
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Controls
® High — Significant effect on control system
Medium — Effect on control system
® Low - Best practice
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Appendix B

Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

1. Impact of adjusted misstatements
All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year ending 31 March 2019.

Comprehensive Income and Statement of Financial Impact on total net
Detail Expenditure Statement Position expenditure
1 Note 35 Potential impact of the McCloud judgement Pension Fund Liability Pension Fund Reserve Nil

The legal ruling around age discrimination (McCloud - Court of Appeal) (E7.7m) £7.7m
has implications for pension schemes where transitional arrangements
on changing benefits have been implemented. ) ] ) )

] o . i o Past service costs (including Movement in Reserves

iscussion is ongoing in the sector regarding the potential impact of the curtailments)

G%Jling on the financial statements of Local Government bodies. £77 (E7.7m)
7m

he Council has requested an estimate from its actuary of the potential
wmpact of the McCloud ruling. The actuary’s estimate was of a possible
increase in pension liabilities of £7m, and an increase in service costs
for the 2019/20 year of £6.88k.
We have satisfied ourselves that there is not a risk of material error as a
result of this issue. We also acknowledge the significant uncertainties
relating to the estimation of the impact on the Council’s liability.

2 Note 35 Defined benefit pension scheme — Draft Statement of Actuarial loss on pension assets Defined benefit liability £89.4m

Accounts was prepared using the provisional IAS 19 estimate. There is and liabilities (£89.4m)
a £89.4m difference between the provisional IAS 19 estimate (£829.3m) £89.4m '

and the final IAS 19 estimate (£918.7m).
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Appendix B

Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

1. Impact of adjusted misstatements
All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year ending 31 March 2019.

Comprehensive Income and Statement of Financial Impact on total net
Detail Expenditure Statement Position expenditure
3 Note 7 Short term creditors — £1.4m of receipts in advance in relation NNDR income Receipts in advance Nil
to other payables should have been classified as unusable reserves. (£1.4m) £1.4m
-
(8 Movement in Reserves Collection Fund adjustment
D £1.4m Account
N (£1.4m)
]
4 Note 11 Other Operating Expenditure — Overage and lease Loss on disposal of non-current Nil
extension income of £7.3m was incorrectly included in the calculation of assets (£7.7m)

the loss on disposal of non-current assets.

Capital receipts £7.7m

Overall impact £96.4m (£96.4m) £96.4m
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Appendix B

Audit Adjustments

2. Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Disclosure omission

Detail

Auditor recommendations

Adjusted?

1. Note 9 NNDR appeals
provision accounting

policy

The accounting policy for
provisions did not include
specific reference to the
NNDR appeals provision
estimate

Include specific accounting policy in relation to the NNDR appeals provision estimate.
Management response
Agreed.

v

2. Note 13 Taxation and
non-Specific Grant
Incomes

hbed

Business rates income was
disclosed as £131.3m but the
correct value is £128.8m, to
net off £2.5m of NNDR top

up.

Amend the disclosure of business rates income in Note 13.
Management response

Agreed.

v

3. Npte 18 External audit
costo

Audit fee disclosed for main
audit included £5k of grant
certification fees.

Correct the allocation of audit fees between main audit and grant certification.
Management response
Agreed.

4. Note 25 Financial
instruments

Note 25 in the draft Statement
of Accounts did not follow the
disclosure requirements of
IFRS 9.

Prepare the financial instruments disclosure in line with IFRS 9 requirements.
Management response
Agreed.

5. Minor presentational
issues

A number of minor formatting
issues to improve the
presentation of the Council’s
Statement of Accounts.

Some minor formatting issues on the notes to the accounts were agreed with management.
Management response
Agreed.
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Appendix C

Fees

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Audit Fees

Proposed fee Final fee
Council Audit £153,684 TBC
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £153,684 TBC

Additional Fees

-
Feg for other services

Proposed fee

mt related services
Grabs:
* Housing Benefit Subsidy return
* Teachers’ Pensions return
* Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts return
Audit of subsidiaries:
* i4B Holdings Ltd audit
*  FWH Ltd audit

£20,000
£3,000
£2,000

£27,000
£25,000

£77,000
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Appendix D

Au d |t O p | n | O n We anticipate we will provide the Group with an unmodified audit report

Independent auditor's report to the members of London Borough of
Brent

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinlon

W have audibed the fremdal stalements of the London Borough of Brent (the “Autharity’) ard its
sufmidianies (the ‘group’) for the year snded 51 banch 2018 which comprise the Bakanos Sheet, the
Plepeiarmint in Reserves Sttament, the Comprehersive Income and Expendibre Stnement, $he Cash
Flow Satement, the Housing Revenue Aocount Income and Expenditure Stalement, the MMovermert an
e Housing Resenoe doooun! Staternent, the Collsction Fund Aocount, the Group Batancs Sheet, the
Group Consolidated Income and Expanditure Statement, the Geoup Cach Flow Staberment, and the
Group Moverment in Besarees, and the Group Cash Flow Statement and noles o e financial
staements, inchuding @ summary of sigrificant acoounting pafices. The Srandal reporting Tramevwaork
Shat hors besen applied in ther preparation i appicable e and the CIPRALASAAL code of prictios an
local ity acoounting in e United Kingdam 201818

O cur apinian, the fnancial stabernenis:

i & true and Fair view af the nanaal position of the group and of the Authorty &= ot 31 March
2018 ard of the group's expendibune and income and the Authonty's @xpendiiure and income for the
e thisn ended;

Ferve been prepansd proparly in acoordancs with the CIPFALASAAL code of practice on locl
authonty acoourting in $e Unibsd Kingdom 2016819, and

Fenve been prepaned in accordance with the reouirements of She Local Audit and Aocountability At
2014,

Gt afe

Basis for opinion

e canducted aur audil in acoordance with Inbernational Standards on Aucditing (LK) (150 (UK]) and
applicabie law. Our resporsibilities under those standands are further described in the Aadiors
respormsibilties for the sodit of the finandal stalements” section of our report. We ane independent of e
groug and the Authority in accordance with the efical requiremeants that are relevant toour sudit of the
franaal stalerments in the UK, induding the FRIC s Ethical Standand, ard we bave fulfilled our ather
athical resporsibiites in accordance with these requirements. We baleve thatl the audit evidencs we
Frave abtained & suficen) and apprapdate o provide 3 basis for our opifion.

Conciuslons retsting to going concern

Wi hawe nothing 1o report in nespect af the fallowing matiers in relation b which the IS0 (LK) ecquire
ws 5 reprt B you weke:

& the Interirn Director of Finance's use of the going concern basis af aooounting in the prepansdion of
e firancial stataments is nol sporogriabe; or
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= e Inberirn Directar of Finance bas nol disdosed in the financil stabements. any idendfied matedal
uncertainties that may cast Sgrificant douit abou? the group's or the SAuhaonty's ability o continue o
adopt the going concemn basis af acoounting fior & period of at kast welvie manths fram the dajes
e the financial statements are auhonised for issoe.

Oiher Information

The Irnferim Direcior of France i resporsible for the ofer informesion. The other infomation comprises
e infomrnation inchuded in the Statement of Accounts, the Marmaiyve Statemen, and the Annusl
Governanoe Salement, other than the Autharnty and groun fnancial staternents and, our auditon s repor
an the pension fund frandal statemeants. Our apinion an the Tnancisl staberments does nal cover tha
ather irdometion and, exoegt o the ecent otbensise explictly stated in our report, we do not express
any fom ol assuranos conchsion thensan,

In connection with our audit of the financial stabements, our responsiality is (0 read Se otber informeation
and, in doing =0, consder whether the oher information & matedally incorsisient with $he financial
shatements or our knowdedge of the group ard Authonty oirained in the audit or olbersise appeans o be
rmalerially misstated. IF ve identity sudh material incorsisiencies or appanert material msstabermens, we
are reguired o deternine whether there = a maten misstalement in the finanoal stalemeants ara
rmalerial misstalement of the other information I, based on She work we have perfommed, we conchide
Hhal there is a material misstatement af this ather irdomation, we ane required o report el fact.

‘e e rothing 1o repor in this regard.

Oither Information we are required to raport on by sxception under the Cods of Audit Practice

Under the Code af Audit Pracice pubiished by $e Mafonal Audin Office an bebalf of the Comptroler
and Aucitor Gereral (e Code of Audit Practios) we anes reguired (o aorsider whether the Arrual
Governancos Salement does not comgily with the 'Dedivenng Good Goveranos in Local Gavemment:
Framewark [2016]" published by CIPFA and S0UAVCE or i misleading or inoonsistent with the
irfiarmresion af which we ane swvare from our audit. We are not reguired o aorsider whether the Arnual
Governancs Salerent addresses all nsks and controls o thert isks are satistacionly adoressed by
intermaal contrals.

‘e e rothing 1o repor in this regard.

Opinlon on other matter required by the Code of Sudif Practice

In aur opinian, based on the work undertaken in the aourse of $he aodit of the finendal Salerems and
our kroradedie of the Aoty gained Siough our work inrelation fa the Auonty's arangements for
sesc g econonty, efficency and effscivenass inits use of resouces, $he other informeastion pubished
fgether with e finarcial SSalements in the Statement of Accounts, e Marmatiee Salemen, and e
Annual Govemanos Staterment for the frenaal year for which the finencial stalements ane prepansd =
corEishent with the financal stalements.
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Appendix D

Audit opinion

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are reguired to report to you if:

= we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

= we make a written recammendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of. or at the conclusion of the audit; or

= we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under
Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Azt 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the
auwdit ar;

= we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the
course of, or af the conclusion of the audit; or

= we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014, in the course of. or &t the conclusion of the audit.

We hawve nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

T

sponsibilities of the Authority, the Interim Director of Finance and Those Charged with
&3vernance for the financial statements

=xplained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilties for the Staternent of Accounts [32t out on
% to x], the Authority is reguired to make arrangements for the proper administration of its

nancial affairs and to securs that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those
affairs. In this suthority, that officer is the Interim Director of Finance. The Interim Director of Finance is
responsible for the preparation of the Staternent of Accounts, which incledes the financial statements, in
sccordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFALASAAC code of practice on lecal autharity
scocounting in the United Kingdom 2018/149, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the Interim Director of Finance determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from rmaterial misstaternent, whether due to fraud ar
SITor.

In preparing the financial staternents, the Intzrim Director of Finance is responsible for assessing the
group's and the Authority’s ability to continue a5 3 gaing concermn, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention by
government that the services provided by the Authority will no longer be provided.

The Audit and Standards Committee is Those Charged with Gowvernance. Those charged with
gowvemnancs are responsible for oversesing the Autharity's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtsin reasonable assurance about whether the financizal statements a5 whals.
gtz fre= from matensl misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
sudit conducted in accordance with 154s (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
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MEstaternants can arise fom fraud o emor and are considened material if, indvidually o in the
aggregale, ey oould ressonably be expecied fa indioence the sconomic decssions of ueers taken oo,
Feheisad these finanoaal stalemeants,

A further descripion of our respansibiliies for the audil of the inancial staements is ooried on the
Financial Reporting Council’s webrsiles ot s fric org ubdsuditonsresponsibiliies. This desoription forms
part af cur auditors repor.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Conclusion on the
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources

Conclusion

O the bersis of our work, herding regand 1o the guidance: on the specified crilenon ssued by $e
Compiroller and Auditor General in Mowember 2017, we ane saishied thet the Aoty pot in placos
proper arrangemenis for ssaring econommy, efficency and effectiveness inits use of resouroes for the
year ercded 31 Manch 2015

Responaibliities of the Authornhy

The Authonty is resporsible for putdng in plsoe proper arrangements for ssourng econony, efficency
and effactiveness in s use of resounces, o angsune proper slesandship and governance, and 10 nedes

reqularty the adecuacy and effectiveness of these amangemenbs.

Ausdifors responslbBiies for the review of the Authority"s arrangements for sacuring econaormy,
afficiency and affeciivenass In e ues of resources

e are recquired under Section 2001 jiz) of Se Local Aot and Aocountability Act 2014t be saishioed
fhat the Authorty bas made proper arrangements far secunng scanomy, efficieancy and sflaciversss in
it L of resouroes. Wie ane ot reguined o corsider, nor hasve we considensd, whether al aspects of
e Autherity's arangements for secunng acanamy, efficiency and effeciveness in s uze ol reeouces
are aperating effectively.

Wit e undertaken our redew in acoondance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard 1o e
guicanoe on S specified ariteion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in Mowvemiber 2017, &
s whether in all significan? respects the Authonty Fed proper amangements o emsure it book properly
irfarmeed decsions and deploped resounces bo adhisse planned and sustanable cutcomes for epenerns.
and kcal paople. The Complroller and Audiler Seneral delemmired this arilenon as Sat necsssany for us
o cansicer under S Code of Audit Practios in satisfying oursshees whether the Authoty put in plaoe
propar arrangements for s rng econony, aficency and effecieerecs in ils use of rmssunoss far tha
weur ended 31 Manch 2018,

W planned our workl in sccondance with the Code of Aode Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we
underiook sudh work as we oormsidensd reoessany 0 e satished that She Autharity has put in place
proper arrangements for s rng econony, eficency and effecteeress inits use of resounoss
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Appendix D

Audit opinion

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Delay in certification
of completion of the audit

Wi cannot fomally candude the audit and issue an audit corificate for the Aoty for the year ended
31 Marah 2019 in acoordanos wit the requirements of e Local Audit and Sooountabilty Act 2014 and
e Code of Sudit Practios due ba ongoing coresideration by the faudhorsy’s pradecessor sodit of an
abecion relating to previous wears, under Section 27 of the Lol Audit and Accountabilisy Act 2014,
Wie are satisfied thatl this meatter does nal have 2 malerial effect on the firancil staterments or on o
conclLssian on e Authearity's arargements for secuning eoonany, efficiency and effectiveress in s use
arf nesourees for the year anded 31 March 20149,

Wi cannot fomally condude the audic and issoe an audi carificats in acoondanos with the
recuirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Sct 2014 and the Code of Audit Practios until we
Fanver camplled e wark recessany b issue oo Whole of Gaverment Acoounts (WEA) Camporant
Aesurance stalemant for the Authorty for the yeor erded 31 Manch 20180 We ane safsfied thet this
wiorkl doas not Feree a maberial effect on $he financial statements or on our aond usion on e Suthaniby's
arangements Tor seoring econamy, efidency and effectivensss in its use of resounoss for She wear
ended 31 March 2018,

u“g-?mmpﬂ't

Thig@part is mede saledy 1o the members of the Autharity, 25 2 body, in accordance wit Par 5 of the
LoDt aaned Aceaurtabiity Aot 2074 and s set oot in parsgraph 43 of Sie Stabemant of
Respareibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Seciar fudit Agpaintments Limited.
Ot weeds Fans bean underaken so that we might state (o e Suthority's memibens thaos mathers
Wt e resquinesd b stale fa them in an audiors repord and for o ather pumose. Ta (b fullest exient
presrrmithesc] by Loy, s dio ol acospt or assume responsility o anyore ather than Se Autharity and the
Authonity’s members a5 a body, for our audit wors, far this repon, or for She opinians we have formed.

[Sigrature]

Paul Dossett, Key fudit Partres
far and on behall of Grant Thamion UK LLP, Local Auditor

Landon

100 Juty 2013
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Reshma Ravikumar
The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing

Audit In'Charge our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify
T: 020 7728 3073 control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements
. in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our
E: reshma.ravikumar@uk.gt.com prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report
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of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.
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Headlines

This table summarises the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audit of the Brent Pension Fund (‘the Pension Fund’) and the preparation of the Pension Fund's
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 for those charged with governance.

Financial Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) Our audit work was completed on site during June and July. Our findings are summarised on pages 4 to
Statements and the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit 9. We have identified no adjustments to the financial statements that have had an impact on the Pension
Practice (‘the Code'), we are required to report Fund’s reported financial position. Audit adjustments and misclassification disclosure changes are
whether, in our opinion, the Pension Fund's detailed in Appendix B. Our follow up of recommendations from the prior year’s audit are detailed in
financial statements: Appendix A.

+ give atrue and fair view of the financial
position of the Pension Fund and its income
and expenditure for the year; and o ) o o ]

« have been properly prepared in accordance Outstanding items include the following items where we are awaiting information from you as at the date
with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on of writing this report in order to continue our work:
local authority accounting and prepared in - alisting for administering authority to be able to pick a sample of 5 items for contributions testing;
accordance with the Local Audit and - processing of audit evidence for 4 items relating to the debtors sample
Accountability Act 2014. - responses to 2 queries on the benefits sample

Our work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are aware that would require
modification of our audit opinion Appendix C.

We are still completing work in the following areas, in addition to those areas above where we are
awaiting information:

- process of evidence for 5 items relating to the sample of contributions;

- review of financial instruments, related parties and key management personnel disclosures;

- updating our work on investments when we receive the outstanding confirmations; and

- pick a sample of investment transactions for cut off and purchases and sales testing

TG abed

We are still to complete the following closing procedures, which are concluded at the end of the audit:
- review of impact of McCloud judgement on the IAS 26 disclosure;

- senior management quality reviews;

- receipt of your management representation letter;

- consideration of subsequent events; and

- review of the final set of financial statements.

Our anticipated audit report opinion will be unqualified.

Acknowledgements
We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.
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Financial statements

Summary

Overview of the scope of our audit

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising from the audit that are
significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial
reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and the

Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents have been discussed with management.

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) and the Code, which is directed towards forming and
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by
management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the
financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of
their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

abed

Our approach to materiality

Audit approach

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Pension Fund's
business and is risk based, and in particular included:

An evaluation of the Pension Fund's internal controls environment, including its IT
systems and controls; and

Substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances, including
the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

We have not had to alter or change our audit plan, as communicated to you in January
2019

Conclusion

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements and subject to
outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion
following the Audit and Standards Committee meeting on 10 July 2019, as detailed in
Appendix C.

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to

disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law.

Materiality calculations remain the same as reported in our audit plan. We detail in the table below our determination of materiality for Brent Pension Fund.

Pension Fund Amount

()
Materiality for the financial statements 8,001,000
Performance materiality 6,001,000
Trivial matters 400,000
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Financial Statements

Significant findings — audit risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Improper revenue recognition

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed
risk that revenue may be misstated due to the
improper recognition of revenue.

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor
concludes that there is no risk of material
misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue
recognition.

Auditor commentary

During our risk assessment, we considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at
the Fund, we determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition
opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including London Borough of Brent, mean that all forms of
fraud are seen as unacceptable

Therefore we did not consider this to be a significant risk for Brent Pension Fund.

We have not made any changes to this assessment reported to you in the Audit Plan.

Management override of controls

=) Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable

Q) presumed risk that the risk of management over-ride
«Q

of controls is present in all entities. The Fund faces
external scrutiny of its spending and stewardship of

83 funds and this could potentially place management

under undue pressure in terms of how they report
performance.

We therefore identified management override of
control, in particular journals, management estimates
and transactions outside the course of business as a
significant risk, which was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement.

Auditor commentary

We have:

evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals;
analysed the journals listing and determine the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals;

tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and
corroboration:

gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied made by management and
considered their reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence; and

evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of management override of controls.
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Financial statements

Significant findings — audit risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

e The valuation of Level 3 investments is incorrect  Auditor commentary
Under ISA 315 significant risks often relate to We have

significant norll-rqutlne transacbtlor;]s gndjudgemental » gained an understanding of the Fund’s management processes for valuing Level 3 investments and evaluated the
matters. Level 3 investments by their very nature design of the associated controls;

require a significant degree of judgement to reach an i ) ) )
appropriate valuation at year end. + reviewed the nature and basis of estimated values and considered what assurance management has over the year
end valuations provided for these types of investments; and

» for a sample of investments, tested the valuation by obtaining and reviewing the audited accounts, (where available)
at the latest date for individual investments and agreed these to the fund manager reports at that date. Reconciled
those values to the values at 31 March 2019 with reference to known movements in the intervening period.

We have not identified any issues in respect of the valuation of Level 3 investments.

G abed
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Financial statements

Going concern

Our responsibility

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK) 570).

Going concern commentary

Management's assessment process

Management have reviewed the Fund’s funding position
and cash flows.

o
o]

Auditor commentary

The Pension Fund has sufficient assets to meet its liabilities as they fall due over the next 12 months. Local
Government Pension schemes are effectively underwritten by the tax payer with deficits financed by increased
contributions agreed with the actuary that are financed through Council and Admitted and Scheduled bodies
contributions.

There is no plan by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government to wind up the London Borough of
Brent Pension Fund.

The Pension Fund continues to operate as usual in 2018/19. Contributions and investment income continue to be
received as expected.

QU
Waak performed
De@I’ audit work performed on management’s assessment

Auditor commentary

We have reviewed management’s assessment that the financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

We are satisfied that there are sufficient assets to meet liabilities as they fall due. The last triennial actuarial valuation
as at 31 March 2016 showed the funding level of 55% with a plan to achieve 100% solvency over the 19 years from
that valuation.

The fund continues to operate as usual.

Concluding comments

Auditor commentary

We are satisfied that the Pension Fund Financial Statements are prepared on a Going Concern basis.
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Financial statements

Significant findings - other issues

This section provides commentary on new issues and risks which were identified during the course of the audit that were not previously communicated in the Audit Plan and a
summary of any significant deficiencies identified during the year.

Issue

Commentary

Auditor view

o Potential impact of the McCloud judgement

The Court of Appeal has ruled that there was age
discrimination in the judges and firefighters pension
schemes where transitional protections were given to
scheme members.

- The Government applied to the Supreme Court for

Q permission to appeal this ruling, but this permission to
(Q appeal was unsuccessful. The case will now be

@ remitted back to employment tribunal for remedy.

8 The legal ruling around age discrimination (McCloud -
Court of Appeal) has implications not just for pension
funds, but also for other pension schemes where they
have implemented transitional arrangements on
changing benefits.

Discussions are ongoing in the sector regarding the
potential impact of the ruling and the application for
appeal on the financial statements of Local Government
Pension Schemes.

The Pension Fund has requested an estimate from its
actuary of the potential impact of the McCloud ruling on
the disclosure of the IAS 26 Actuarial present value of
promised retirement benefits in Note 19. The Pension
Fund has not yet received the estimate from its actuary.

We will review the analysis performed by the actuary, and
consider whether the approach that has been taken to
arrive at this estimate is reasonable.

Although we are of the view that there is sufficient evidence
to indicate that any liability related to the McCloud
judgement is probable, we will have to satisfy ourselves that
there is not a risk of material error as a result of this issue.
We also acknowledge the significant uncertainties relating
to the estimation of the impact on the Council’s liability.

We have included this as a likely disclosure change within
Appendix B.
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Financial Statements

Other communication requirements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.

Issue

Commentary

o Matters in relation to fraud

We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit and Standards Committee. We have not been made aware of any
incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.

9 Matters in relation to related
parties

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

e Matters in relation to laws and
regulations

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not
identified any incidences from our audit work.

9 -y Written representations
QD
«Q
D

A standard letter of representation has been requested from the Pension Fund, which is included in the Audit and Standards
Committee papers.

em Confirmation requests from
third parties

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to your custodian, investment fund managers and banks.
This permission was granted and the requests were sent. Most of these requests were returned with positive confirmation, however 2
requests from Legal & General and Northern Trust were not received so management are supporting our chasing efforts.

@ Disclosures

We found some disclosure that required updating. See Appendix B for further details.

0 Audit evidence and
explanations

We did not encounter any significant difficulties in carrying out the audit. The Pension Fund accounting team replied to our queriesin a
timely manner and in sufficient detail.

@ Matters on which we report by
exception

We are required to give a separate opinion for the Pension Fund Annual Report on whether the financial statements included therein
are consistent with the audited financial statements. Due to statutory deadlines the Pension Fund Annual Report is not required to be
published until the 15t December 2019 and therefore this report has not yet been produced. We have therefore not given this

separate opinion at this time and are unable to certify completion of the audit of the administering authority until this work has been
completed.
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Independence and ethics

Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the

Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial
statements

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical
requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

Details of fees charged are detailed below

Audit and Non-audit related services

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Pension Fund. No non-audit services were identified which were
charged from the beginning of the financial year to July 2019, as well as the threats to our independence and safeguards that have been applied to mitigate these threats.

Fees
¢
W%ﬁonfirm below our final fees charged for the audit. We confirm there were no fees for the provision of non-audit or audit-related services.

o
Audit Fees

Proposed fee Final fee
Pension Fund Audit 16,170 TBC
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 16,170 TBC
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Appendix A

Follow up of prior year recommendations

Your previous auditors, KPMG, identified the following issue in the audit of Brent Pension Fund’s 2017/18 financial statements, which resulted in 1 recommendation being reported in our
2017/18 Audit Findings report. We are pleased to report that management have implemented all of KPMG’s recommendations.

Assessment  Issue and risk previously communicated by KPMG Update on actions taken to address the issue
o / Accounts preparation of the Pension Fund Management have confirmed that they have reflected the
balances from the custodians reports (i.e. market value of

The Authority does not put through the general ledger all the entries relating to increases
in market value of investments but uses the Custodian report as the basis for preparing
the asset values included in the accounts. Not using a full trial balance to prepare the
accounts can lead to an enhanced risk that errors may occur. We identified two errors
relating to assets in the accounts:

investments) in the general ledger. This has been confirmed by
our work on investments. Therefore this recommendation has
been implemented.

* One where the incorrect bank balance figure was given to the custodian; and
* One where the custodian did not use the final year end report from a Fund manager.

We recommend that the Authority puts journals through the general ledger for all entries
in the Pension Fund accounts and reconciles reports from Fund Managers to the
Custodian report.

6G abed

Assessment
v Action completed
X Not yet addressed
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Appendix B

Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

Impact of adjusted misstatements
We have not identified any adjusted misstatements in relation to the 2018/19. Statement of Accounts as at the date of writing this report.

Impact of unadjusted misstatements
We have not identified any unadjusted misstatements in relation to the 2018/19. Statement of Accounts as at the date of writing this report. If any are subsequently identified, the Audit

and Standards Committee is required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the table below:

Impact of prior year unadjusted misstatements
We hﬁe not identified any unadjusted misstatements in relation to the 2017/18 Statement of Accounts as at the date of writing this report.

QO
«Q

D

Mistassification and disclosure changes
The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Disclosure

omission Detail Auditor recommendations Adjusted?
McCloud and As detailed in the Significant findings - other issues section on page * Management should obtain an updated estimate of the IAS 26 TBC
IAS 26 8, there may be a change in the disclosure of the IAS 26 Actuarial Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits as at 31 March

disclosure present value of promised retirement benefits in Note 19 due to an 2019 taking into account the findings from the McCloud judgement

updated estimate from your actuary following the McCloud and update the disclosure if there is a material difference.
Adjustment.
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Appendix B

Audit Adjustments

Disclosure
omission Detail Auditor recommendations Adjusted?
Key Note 23 referred to the disclosure of Key management personnelin < Management should determine who are the key management ‘/
Management the main accounts of London Borough of Brent. Our interpretation personnel of the pension fund and include the disclosures required
Personnel of the Code is that the pension fund accounts must be capable of under section 3.4 of the Code in respect of the key management
standing alone from the local authority financial statements as: personnel, within Note 23 of the pension fund accounts.
* local authority pension fund accounts are not only published
alongside the financial statements of the administrating authority
but are also published separately within the Pension Fund
annual report
» the disclosures set out in the local authority financial statements
will refer to officers and members who are not involved in the
management of the Pension Fund
Accl@inting Note 11 disclosed £2.2m expenditure a Accounting adjustment. On * Management should describe this as a write off of an investment ‘/
Ad@tment investigation, this was a write off of a historical investment balance balance.
o) error. This would be better described as a write off of an investment
o)) balance, and a narrative disclosure added to explain the nature of
= the transaction to users of the accounts.
Member Data The member data disclosed in Note 1 b) of the draft accounts was » Management should correct the disclosure in the next draft of the /
not correct. The total number of members was correct, but the split accounts.
between Administering Authority, Scheduled Bodies and Admitted
Bodies was incorrect.
Actuarial In Note 19, the Actuarial present value of promised retirement » Management should correct the disclosure in the next draft of the ‘/
Assumptions benefits, the discount rate and sensitivity analysis did not agree to accounts.

the IAS 19 report from the actuary.
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Appendix C

Draft audit opinion

We anticipate we will provide the Pension Fund with an unmodified audit report

Independent auditor's report to the members of London Borough of
Brent on the pension fund iinancial statements of Brent Pension Fund

DOpinion

We have audited the financial statements of Brent Pension Fund {the ‘pension fund’) administered by
London Borcugh of Brent (the “Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the Fund
Account, the Met Assets Statement and notes to the pension fund financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFAALASAAC code of practice on local authorify
accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/19.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the pension fund during the year ended 31
hMarch 2019 and of the amount and disposition at that date of the fund's assets and liabilities;

- hawve been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 20189, and

- awve been prepared im accordance with the reguirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
014,

Bax(p for opinion

appRosble law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the
Authority in accordance with the ethical reguirements that are relevant to cur audit of the pension fund's
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have ocbtained is sufiicient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Weﬁ\ducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1Sas (UK} and

Conclusions relating to going concern

We hawve nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require
us to report to you where:

= the Interim Director of Finance’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of
the pension fund’'s financial statements is not appropriate; or

= the Interimn Director of Finance has not disclosed in the pension fund's fimancial statements any
identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for the pension fund for a periocd of at least
twehre months from the date when the pension fund's fimancial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Interim Director of Finance is responsible for the other information. The aother information comprises
the imformation included in the Statement of Accounts, the Marrative Report and the Annual Governance
Statement, other than the pension fund's financial statements. our auditor's report thereon and our
auditor's report om the LAuthority’s financial statements. Our opinion on the pension fund’s financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent othernwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion therson.

In connection with our audit of the pension fund's fimancial statements, our responsibkility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materally inconsistent with
the pension fund’s financial statements or our knowledge of the pension fund obtained in the audit or
ocithernvise appears to be materally misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there iz a materal misstatement in the
pension fund’'s financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact.
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We hawve nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit
Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice)

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the pension fund’s financial
statements and our knowlaedge of the pension fund the other information published together with the
pension fund’s financial statements in the Statement of Accounts, the Marrative Report and the Annual
Gowvernance Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the pension fund’s financial statements_

Matters on which we are reguired to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report fo you if:

= we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

= we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the comclusion of the awdit; or

- we make an applicafion to the court for a declaration that an ftem of account i= contrary to law under
Sectiom 22 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the
audit; or;

= we issue an advisory nofice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the
course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

- we make an application for judicial review under Sectiomn 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We hawve nothing to report in respect of the abowve matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Interim Director of Finance and Those Charged with
Governance for the financial statements

L= explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts set ocut on
pages 71 to 72, the Authority is reguired to make armangements for the proper administration of its
financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administfration of those
affairs. In this awuthority, that officer is the Interim Director of Finance. The Interim Director of Finance is
responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the pension fund’s financial
statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on
local authorty accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/19, for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair wiew, and for such internal control as the Interim Director of Finance determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of inancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the pension fund’s financial statements, the Interim Director of Finance is responsible for
assessing the pension fund’s ability fo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the geing concermn basis of accounting unless there is an intention by
government that the services provided by the pension fund will no longer be provided._

The Audit and Standards Committes is Those Charged with Governance. Those charged with
governance are responsible for overseeing the Awuthority’s financial reporiing process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur ocbjectives are to ocbtain reasonable assurance about whether the pension fund's financial
statements as a.whole _ace free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
amn auditor's report that includes ocwur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will ahways detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or ermor and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on fbe basis of these financial statements.
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Appendix C

Draft audit opinion

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the

Fimnancial Reporiing Council's website at: www_frc_org. ukfauditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

Thiz report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of

Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.

Ouwr audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority's members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the
Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

[Signature]
U

QD
PalDossett Key Audit Partner
for aml on behalf of Grant Thornfon UK LLP, Local Auditor

(@]
Longad

[Date]
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